




  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1a 



      
 

Middleton City Council Meeting July 19, 2023 Page 1 
 

 MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL  
JULY 19, 2023 

 
The Middleton City Council Meeting was called to order on July 19, 2023, at 5:31 p.m. by 
Mayor Steve Rule.  
  
Roll Call:  
City Council: Council Members Huggins, Murray and O’Meara were all present. Council 
President Kiser was absent.  
 
City Attorney Mr. Waterman, Public Works Director Mr. Van Gilder, Planning & Zoning 
Official Ms. Stewart, and Deputy Clerk Ms. Reynolds were present. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation: Jim Taylor 
 
Action Items  
A. Approve Agenda 
 
Motion: Motion by Council Member Huggins to approve the Agenda dated July 14, 2023, 
5:00 p.m. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved unanimously. 
 
Information Item:  
1. Introduction of Jacob Sherrer for MURA – Mayor Rule 
Mayor Rule introduced the item and Mr. Sherrer gave a brief introduction of himself. He is 
happy to serve on MURA. 
 
2. Sewer System overview – Amy Woodruff, City Engineer. 
Mayor Rule asked Ms. Woodruff to present a review of the city’s Sewer System. 

• Infiltration and Inflow (I&I): The city has identified and stopped 100,000 gallons per 
day of I&I. This is a significant savings to the residents because that water is no 
longer leaking into the sewer system and inadvertently being treated.  

• There is a significant benefit to the city if the pilot study can show removal of 
temperature and other nutrients thorough the uptake in the alfalfa thus negating the 
need for costly chillers and nutrient removal. 

• Middleton needs to upgrade the WWTP to meet the requirements for discharge back 
into the Boise River. All the cities along the Boise River (in the Treasure Valley) are 
looking at the new federal requirements and making appropriate upgrades. The 
previous upgrade before 2012 was 7 million dollars, which is nothing in the 
wastewater industry. The technology had been selected and it made the most sense 
for Middleton at that time but is not capable of meeting the limits anticipated.  

 
Action Item: 
1. Consent Agenda (items of routine administrative business)  

a. Consider approving minutes for City Council July 5, 2023, Regular meeting. 
b. Consider ratifying payroll for July 14,2023 in the amount of $101,556.12. 
c. Consider approving accounts payable through July 19, 2023, in the amount of 

$311,839.95. 
d. Consider authorizing the Mayor to accept the quote for the repair of a WWTP 

headworks pump not to exceed the amount of $13,209.69. – Mr. Van Gilder 
 



      
 

Middleton City Council Meeting July 19, 2023 Page 2 
 

Mayor Rule called the items. He asked Mr. Van Gilder to explain item 1d. Council Member 
Huggins said she had an email from Council President Kiser who had gone through the 
accounts payable in the packet. He noted that there was a large check to Integrity Solutions 
for the camera inspections that was authorized by Council previously and 3 large 
passthrough checks on this run.  
 
Motion: Motion by Council Member Huggins to approve Consent Agenda Items 1 a, b, c & d. 
Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved unanimously. 

 
2. Consider authorizing the Mayor to enter into an agreement with the Bloomquist family 

to accept the donation of a tree to be planted on City property, the placement of a 
plaque to commemorate that donation, and a plaque to be placed on the back of the 
“Welcome to Middleton” sign located in Centennial Grove Park. – Mr. Van Gilder 

Mayor Rule called the item and Mr. Van Gilder explained the agreement. Mr. Bloomquist 
passed away on August 2, 2022. The family has asked if they can place a plaque on the 
monument sign that he had built for his Eagle Scout project years ago. The family will also 
donate and plant a tree in Roadside Park.  

Motion: Motion by Council Member Huggins authorize the Mayor to enter into an agreement 
with the Bloomquist family to accept the donation of a tree to be planted on City property, 
the placement of a plaque to commemorate that donation, and a plaque to be placed on the 
back of the “Welcome to Middleton” sign located in Centennial Grove Park. Motion 
seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved unanimously.  

3. Consider authorizing the Mayor to approve the Baer Design Group Inc. scope of work 
not to exceed the amount of $34,000 to master plan River Walk Park. – Mr. Van Gilder 

Mayor Rule called the item and Mr. Van Gilder explained the item. This is necessary as it is 
the next logical step in the development of River Walk Park.  It was noted that advancing the 
design will be helpful as the city applies for state grant funding which typically favor 100% 
design completed prior to grant application.   

Motion: Motion by Council Member Huggins to authorize the Mayor to approve the Baer 
Design Group Inc. scope of work not to exceed the amount of $34,000 to master plan River 
Walk Park. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved unanimously. 

4. Consider approval of the final plat for Estates at W. Highland, Phase #2. - Ms. Stewart 

Mayor Rule called the item Ms. Stewart gave a brief overview/report of the final plat. There 
are 2 phases of this subdivision. This is the last phase.  

Motion: Motion by Council Member Huggins to approve the final plat for Estates at W. 
Highland, Phase #2. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved 
unanimously. 

5. Consider approving Resolution No. 483-23: A Resolution declaring the value of 
certain real property intended for conveyance; and declaring the intent to convey said 
real property by exchange; and calling for a public hearing to be held to take public 
testimony concerning said proposed conveyance. – Mayor Rule 



      
 

Middleton City Council Meeting July 19, 2023 Page 3 
 

Mayor Rule called the item and explained this property exchange with the Higginson’s is 
favorable to the city because the property boarders the old walking path and train track that 
was donated to the city for tax credits during Mayor McKeever’s administration. This 
exchange gives the city full needed right of way to construct Middleton Road. There is an 
agreement, but this resolution is the first step to get to the public hearing.  

Council member O’Meara asked about the cost of moving the fence. Mayor Rule said that 
cost has been corrected to $18,000. City feels it is in the City’s best interest to let 
Higginson’s build and construct the fence, rather than have the city construct the fence.  

Council Member Murray asked if there have been any studies that have been conducted 
showing that the straightening of Middleton Rd will improve traffic flow.  

Ms. Woodruff stated that the city has done extensive analysis and the straightening of 
Middleton Rd. provides an increasing capacity of 200%.  

Mayor Rule stated that there are over 2,000 homes that are approved in Middleton now. The 
straightening of Middleton Rd is an attempt to route outside through traffic away from 
downtown Middleton to Nampa and Caldwell. This has been on the radar for decades.  

Council Member O’Meara stated that this has been in planning for a long time. It would have 
behooved the City to acquire this land decades ago.  

Mr. Van Gilder stated that there was a study conducted in 2016 identifying the Middleton Rd. 
corridor with plan to enlarge from 2 lanes to 4 lanes and enlarging or replacing the bridge to 
4 lanes. 

Council Member Huggins said the straightening of Middleton Rd has been part of the plans 
since before she became a part of Council. And finally, the City is getting the right of way.  

Motion: Motion by Council Member Huggins to approve Resolution No. 483-23: A 
Resolution declaring the value of certain real property intended for conveyance; and 
declaring the intent to convey said real property by exchange; and calling for a public 
hearing to be held to take public testimony concerning said proposed conveyance. Motion 
seconded by Council Member O’Meara.  

Roll Call Vote: Huggins – Yes, Murray – No, O’Meara – Yes. Approved 2 to 1.  

6. Public Hearing:  Application by City of Middleton for rezone and comprehensive 
plan map amendment with respect to parcels owned by the City of Middleton (Parcel 
No. R33900010A0 Middleton Road (approx. 21 acres) and Parcel No. R33910010 
(approx. 7 acres)).  City is requesting City Council to rezone Parcel R33900010A0 from 
R-3 (Single Family Residential) to M-U (Mixed Use) and rezone Parcel No. R33910010 
from A-R (Agricultural Residential) to M-U (Mixed-Use) in anticipation of a future 
mixed-use project to be known as the Mill Creek Plaza. City is also requesting that the 
designation of “Public” on the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map be changed 
to “Mixed-Use.” - Ms. Stewart 
 
Mayor Rule opened the Public Hearing at 6:25 p.m. 
 
Planning & Zoning Official Ms. Stewart presented a PowerPoint of the staff report of the 
application. (Exhibit 1) 



      
 

Middleton City Council Meeting July 19, 2023 Page 4 
 

 
Mayor Rule said this is one of the steps moving forward to get this property staged properly 
prior to putting out the RFQ. 
 
Council Member Murray stated he thought the 7 acres should be used as an area to re-route 
the Middle School traffic.  
 
Council Member Huggins asked what the repercussions of changing the zoning now could 
be on potentially new council members and mayor given this is an election year.  
 
Ms. Stewart said we are strictly talking about zoning right now and laying the foundation for 
the potential plaza. Any future council members or mayor could come in and change the 
zoning and change the plan. 
 
Mayor Rule opened public testimony at 6:39 p.m. 
No one testified. 
Mayor Rule closed public testimony at 6:40 p.m. 
 
Motion: Council Member Huggins moved based upon the facts and law presented to 
approve the Application by City of Middleton to rezone and parcel numbers R33910010 and 
R33900010A0 to Mixed-Use. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara. 
Roll Call Vote: Huggins – Yes, Murray – No, O’Meara – Yes. Approved 2 to 1.  
 
Motion: Council Member Huggins moved based upon the facts and law presented to 
approve the application by the City of Middleton to amend the Comprehensive Plan Future 
Land Use Map by changing the land use designation of parcels numbers R33910010 and 
R33900010A0 to Mixed-Use. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara. 
Roll Call Vote: Huggins – Yes, Murray – No, O’Meara – Yes. Approved 2 to 1.  
 
7. Consider approving Ordinance 678 OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON 
COUNTY, IDAHO, TO REZONE CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATED WITHIN 
MIDDLETON CITY LIMITS TO M-U (MIXED-USE); DIRECTING THAT COPIES OF THIS 
ORDINANCE BE FILED AS PROVIDED BY LAW; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. - Ms. Stewart 
 
Mayor Rule called the item.  
 
Motion: Motion by Council Member Huggins to read Ordinance 678 by Title Only. Motion 
seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved unanimously.  
 
Council Member Huggins read Ordinance 678 by Title Only. 
 
Motion: Motion by Council Member Huggins to waive the 3-reading rule and adopt 
Ordinance 678. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara.  
Roll Call Vote: Huggins – Yes, Murray – Yes, O’Meara – Yes. Approved unanimously.  
 
8. Consider adopting Resolution 482-23 PURSUANT TO IDAHO CODE § 67-6509(C), 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, AN IDAHO MUNICIPAL 
CORPORATION, REPLACING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP. - Ms. Stewart 
 
Mayor Rule called the item. 



      
 

Middleton City Council Meeting July 19, 2023 Page 5 
 

 
Motion:  Motion by Council Member Huggins to approve Resolution 482-23 replacing the 
Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan with a new Future Land Use Map 
showing the use for the parcels proposed for the Mill Creek Plaza as Mixed-Use. Motion 
Seconded by Council Member O’Meara.    
Roll Call Vote: Huggins – Yes, Murray – Yes, O’Meara – Yes. Approved unanimously.  
 
Mayor Rule closed the Public Hearing at 6:44 p.m. 
 
9. Consider approving ORDINANCE 679 AMENDING TITLE 1, CHAPTER 15, SECTION 
1-15-12, OF THE MIDDLETON CITY CODE, PERTAINING TO THE GENERAL 
REQUIREMENTS FOR VENDORS, SOLICITORS AND TEMPORARY MERCHANTS 
PERMITS AND AMENDING TITLE 4, CHAPTER 1, SECTION 4-1-1 OF THE MIDDLETON 
CITY CODE REGARDING BUILDING PERMIT REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, ORDERS AND PARTS THEREOF, IN CONFLICT 
HEREWITH. - Ms. Stewart 
 
Mayor Rule called the item. Ms. Stewart explained the changes.  
City Attorney Mr. Waterman clarified the rough proportionality regarding mitigation and 
impact of development.  
 
Discussion about the ordinance between Council and Ms. Stewart.  
 
Council Member Huggins would like Council President Kiser to be able to weigh in on this 
ordinance before it is passed. She would like to not waive the 3-reading rule.  
 
Motion: Motion by Council Member Huggins to read Ordinance 679 by Title Only for the 1st 
reading. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara. 
 
Council Member Huggins read Ordinance 679 by Title Only for the 1st reading.  
 
This Ordinance will be brought back before the Council for the 2nd reading at a future 
meeting. 
 
(Tabled to Future meeting)  
10. Consider approving the Summary of Ordinance 679 AMENDING TITLE 1, 
CHAPTER 15, SECTION 1-15-12, OF THE MIDDLETON CITY CODE, PERTAINING TO 
THE GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR VENDORS, SOLICITORS AND TEMPORARY 
MERCHANTS PERMITS AND AMENDING TITLE 4, CHAPTER 1, SECTION 4-1-1 OF 
THE MIDDLETON CITY CODE REGARDING BUILDING PERMIT REQUIREMENTS; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, ORDERS AND PARTS THEREOF, IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH. - Ms. Stewart 
 
Public Comments: 
Jim Taylor: In past administrations public comments were allowed to be made on individual 

items. He would like to see that reinstated. He also believes that council members 
should recuse themselves when there are items brought forward that could create a 
conflict of interest given their employment.  

Mikel Galloway: Concerned there was not a unanimous vote to waive the permit fees for the 



      
 

Middleton City Council Meeting July 19, 2023 Page 6 
 

School District for the 5 portable classrooms at the last council meeting. All kids that go 
to Middleton schools are Middleton kids regardless of if they live in the City or County. 

 
Mayor, Staff and Council Comments: 
Council Member Murray: Concerned that the 7 acres came up as part of the rezone. He 
believes the 7 acres could have been used for a parking lot with the School District had it 
been brought up. Would like to have a more comprehensive discussion in the future.  
 
Mayor Rule: Doesn’t disagree with Council Member Murry. He said this zoning change came 
up as part of the RFQ discussion well after the parking lot discussion was presented to the 
council.  
 
Council Member Huggins: Concerned the minutes reflect to “waive” the fees. That verbiage 
makes it sound like we made the fees zero. The fees of $17,000 didn’t go away, they are 
only being charged to the Middleton City Residents. Those fees still go out in wages, 
benefits and city employee’s time. She would like there to be an information item as a 
council discussion regarding the percentage of other taxing districts that the city is willing 
pay for.  
 
Mayor Rule: Months ago, Councilman Murray asked for an update to the Comprehensive 
Plan. The City received only one application and Mayor asked Ms. Stewart to get more. 
Currently the City is vetting 3 applicants to update the Comprehensive Plan and hope to 
have them presented to Council in the near future. It has taken longer to get going than 
anticipated. 
 
Adjourn: Mayor Rule adjourned the meeting at 7:27 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
             
ATTEST:      Mayor, Steve Rule    
 
      
Jennica Reynolds, Deputy Clerk 
Minutes Approved: August 2, 2023 



7/28/2023

1

City Rezone & Comprehensive 
Plan Map Amendment 

Applications

 Vicinity:  Property sandwiched between 
Boise Street and the Sawtooth Lakes 
Subdivision.

 This is a City application for rezone of 
two parcels owned by the City (Parcel 
No. R33900010A / 0 Middleton Road and 
Parcel No. R33910010).  City is 
requesting a rezone from R-3 (Single 
Family Residential) and A-R 
(Agricultural Residential) to M-U (Mixed-
Use) to pave the way for a future mixed 
use project known as the Mill Creek 
Plaza. City is also requesting a change 
to the Comprehensive Plan’s Future 
Land Use Map (“FLUM”) to change the 
designation on the FLUM from “Public” 
to “Mixed Use”.

Mill Creek Plaza 

7R33910010

Mill Creek Plaza

The potential City Plaza is intended to 
be a gathering place that will be in the 
heart of the City’s planned “River Walk 
District.”  The new plaza may have 
restaurants, retail, office, and possibly 
some residential components that will 
create a vibrant place for residents of 
Middleton to visit, live, work, shop, and 
play.  The plaza will provide plaza areas 
for relaxing and event areas for winter 
play, summer play, concerts, markets 
and other outdoor events.

20 Acre City Plaza & Town Square

• Restaurants
• Retail
• Nearby Hotel
• Activity Features
• Plaza & Gathering Places
• Office
• Residential

Mill Creek Plaza River Walk District

The Mill Creek Plaza will 
also tie into the 5 -6 miles 
of River Walk pathways 
that lead to the 98 acre 
River Walk Park and 
Boise River greenbelt 
trail.

98 Acre Park and Boise River Recreation
River Walk Park

• Biking
• Swimming
• Unmotorized water 

sports

98 Acre Park and Boise River Recreation

• Rafting
• Kayaking
• Fishing
• Gathering Areas

River Walk Park Zoning & Property Conditions

Currently the project parcels are vacant land zoned R-3 
(Single Family Residential) and A-R (Agricultural 
Residential). The parcels are surrounded by a variety of 
zones, including some zones with high density:  M-F (Multi-
Family), C-3 (Heavy Commercial), C-1 (Neighborhood 
Commercial), and M-U (Mixed Use). R-3 (Single Family 
Residential) and A-R (Agricultural Residential) zones are to 
the north, south, and west. A rezone to Mixed Use will allow 
commercial uses such as retail, restaurants, banks, spas, art 
studio, entertainment facilities, professional services, 
drycleaning, office…etc.  Mixed Use zoning also 
accommodates single family residential housing and 
townhomes.  Apartments or multi-family dwellings are strictly 
prohibited in the M-U zone.

City Services

Water and sewer are immediately adjacent to the property 
on three sides and transect the property right below the 
drain and pedestrian bridge, so City Services are readily 
available to the site

R33910010

1 2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9

jreynolds
Text Box
Exhibit 1



7/28/2023

2

Rezone
FINDINGS:  

Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver 
services because the project is an in-fill project, and City services, roads, infrastructure and 
schools already surround the site.  

Planning Staff also finds that the rezone request is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan.  
Specifically, it is in compliance with the following Goals & Strategies:

Goal 7: The rezone and subsequent project will “invite commercial development that provides 
employment opportunities for residents.”

Goal 8: The project will “promote a vibrant community that attracts businesses and people. It 
will also improve the tourism economy in the City and will establish facilities that help utilize 
the river frontage and outdoor recreation areas.

Goal 9, Strategy 2: The project “creates a river district between Whiffin Lane and Duff 
Lane south of Highway 44 and adjacent to the Boise River”.

Goal 10: Project “designs open spaces as part of large-scale developments and locates 
buildings near open, public spaces to promote activity.

Goal 22: Project “establishes interesting gathering places that encourage walkability and 
promotes good health and positive social interaction.”

City Staff is requesting that the 
20 acre parcel that is currently 
zoned R-3 and the seven acre 
property that is currently zoned 
A-R be rezoned to M-U.  

An application for rezone 
requires two findings before the 
Council can approve the 
application: (1) the rezone will 
not adversely affect the City’s 
delivery of services and (2) the 
rezone request is not in conflict 
with the Comprehensive Plan. 
(Idaho Code 67-6511)

Comprehensive Plan Amendment

FINDINGS:  

City Staff finds that an amendment to the FLUM changing the project parcels from “Public” to 
“Mixed Use” is in harmony with the stated goals in the Comprehensive Plan as shown on the 
previous slide.

Although the rezone and future 
Plaza project are in harmony with 
the Goals and Strategies of the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan, it does 
not fit squarely with the Future 
Land Use Map that shows the 
project parcels to be “Public.”  City 
Staff requests that the FLUM be 
amended to show the project 
parcels as Mixed Use, which is 
defined in the Comprehensive Plan 
as a combination of Commercial 
and Residential uses.

In order to amend the 
Comprehensive Plan Maps, the 
Governing Boards need to find that 
the proposed amendment is in 
harmony with the Comprehensive 
Plan. (MCC 1-14-3)

Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners were attached as Exhibit A to the staff report and 
agenda. 

Applicable Codes: Middleton City Code 1-14 and 5-2 and Idaho State Statute 67-6511

Notices & Neighborhood Meeting: Dates:

Newspaper Notification 7/2/2023

Radius notice to adjacent landowners 6/27/2023

Circulation to Agencies 6/27/2023

Sign Posting property 6/26/2023  

Neighborhood Meeting 5/25/2023

P&Z Commission Recommendation: The P&Z Commission considered City’s applications at a public hearing on 
June 12, 2023.  The Commission recommended approval of the applications.  FCR

Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:

Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any decision on a land use application must be 
based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.  

As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts above in parentheses.  

As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that City Council has the authority to hear 
these applications and to approve or deny the applications.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes 
that all public notice requirements were met. Planning Staff further set forth the portions of the 
Idaho State Code and Middleton City Code to be considered in making a decision on the 
applications.      

If the Council is inclined to recommend approval of the applications, then Planning Staff & the 
P&Z Commission do not recommend any conditions of approval. 

If the Council denies the applications, then Council should state what the applicant can do, if 
anything, to obtain approval. (Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8)).

10 11 12

13







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   1b 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1c 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   1d 



 
 

1 
 

 

Middleton City Council 
Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law, and Order 
 
 

 

 

 
 
In the Matter of the Request of the City of Middleton for rezone and Comprehensive Plan map 
amendment pertaining to parcels owned by the City of Middleton (Parcel No. R33900010A / 0 
Middleton Road and Parcel No. R33910010):  

 
A. Findings of Fact:   

 
1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of July 19, 2023, which Report is 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of July 19, 2023, Exhibit “A”. 
 

3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of July 19, 2023, 
Exhibit “A”. 

 
4. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7), Idaho State Statue Title 67, 

Chapter 65, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15 and 5-2. See Staff Report for the hearing 
date of July 19, 2023,  Exhibit “A”. 
 

B. Conclusions of Law: 
 

1. That the City of Middleton exercised the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land 
Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-
6503). 
 

2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the 
governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning 
jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City 
Planning Staff. 

 
3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.   

 
4. That City Council’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has 

kept a record of the application and related documents.  
 

5. That codes and standards applicable to the applications are Idaho State Statue Title 67, 
Chapter 65, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15 and 5-2.  

 
C. Decision and Recommendation: 

 
Pursuant to City Council’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-2, and based upon 
the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby Ordered that: 
 

1. The application of the City of Middleton to rezone Parcel No. R33900010A0 from R-3 
(Single Family Residential) to M-U (Mixed Use), rezone the seven acres of Parcel No. 
R339100100 from A-R (Agricultural Residential) to M-U is approved. 
 

2. The application of the City of Middleton to change the land use designation from 



             
        

2 
 

“Public” to “Mixed Use” on the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map with 
respect to Parcel Nos. R33900010A0 and R339100100 is approved. 
   

WRITTEN ORDER APPROVED ON: August____, 2023. 
 
 
 
            
      Steven J. Rule 
      Mayor, City of Middleton 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Roberta Stewart 
Planning and Zoning Official 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



rstewart
Typewritten Text
          EXHIBIT "A"



 
 
 

1 
 

             STAFF REVIEW AND REPORT 
                           Middleton City Council 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Mill Creek Plaza  
Rezone & Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment 

 
 

 
 

                 
                                          

A. City Council Hearing Date: July 19, 2023  
  

B. Application Request & Project Description: City application for rezone of two 
parcels owned by the City of Middleton (Parcel No. R33900010A / 0 Middleton Road 
(approx. 20.75 acres) and Parcel No. R33910010 (approx. 7 acres)).  City Staff is 

7 
R33910010 



             
        

2 
 

requesting the governing boards to rezone the propertie from R-3 (Single Family 
Residential) and A-R (Agricultural Residential) to M-U (Mixed-Use) to pave the way for 
a future mixed-use project known as the Mill Creek Plaza. The Rezone request will 
also require a change to the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map (“FLUM”) to 
change the designation on the FLUM from “Public” to “Mixed Use”. 
 
The new City Plaza is intended to be a gathering place that will be in the heart of the 
City’s planned “River Walk District.”  The new plaza may have restaurants, retail, 
office, and possibly some residential components that will create a vibrant place for 
residents of Middleton to visit, live, shop, work and play.  The plaza will provide plaza 
areas for relaxing and event areas for winter play, summer play, concerts, markets and 
other outdoor events. 
 

     
 
The Mill Creek Plaza will also tie into the five to six miles of River Walk pathways that 
lead to the 98 acre River Walk Park and Boise River greenbelt trail. 



             
        

3 
 

 
 

           
 

C. Current Zoning, Land Use & Property Condition:  Currently the project parcels are 
vacant land zoned R-3 (Single Family Residential) and A-R (Agricultural Residential). 
City leases the property to a farmer to grow alfalfa.  The parcels are surrounded by a 
variety of zones, including some zones with high density:  M-F (Multi-Family), C-3 
(Heavy Commercial), C-1 (Neighborhood Commercial), M-U (Mixed Use), R-3 (Single 
Family Residential) and A-R (Agricultural Residential).     
 

          
 



             
        

4 
 

A rezone to Mixed Use will allow commercial uses such as retail, restaurants, banks, 
spas, art studio, entertainment facilities, professional services, office…etc.  Mixed Use 
zoning also accommodates single family residential housing and townhomes.  
Apartments or multi-family dwellings are strictly prohibited in the M-U zone. 

 

D. City Services:  Water and sewer are immediately adjacent to the property on three 
sides and transect the property right below the drain and pedestrian bridge, so City 
Services are readily available to the site.  
 

E. Rezone:  Applicant is requesting that the 20.75 acre parcel that is currently zoned R-3 
be rezoned to M-U and requesting that the seven acre property that is currently zoned 
A-R be rezoned to M-U.   
 
An application for rezone requires two findings before the Council can approve the 
rezone: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and (2) 
the rezone request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho Code 67-
6511) 
 
FINDINGS:   
 
Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver 
services because it is an in-fill project that is surrounded by City roads, schools, 
infrastructure, and utilities, including sewer and water.  
 
Planning Staff also finds that the rezone request is in harmony with the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Specifically, the rezone is in compliance with the following 
Goals & Strategies: 
 
Goal 7: The rezone and subsequent project will “invite commercial development that 
provides employment opportunities for residents.” 
 
Goal 8: The project will “promote a vibrant community” that attracts businesses and 
people. It will also improve the tourism economy in the City and will establish facilities 
that help utilize the river frontage and outdoor recreation areas. 
 



             
        

5 
 

Goal 9, Strategy 2: The project “creates a river district between Whiffin Lane and 
Duff Lane south of Highway 44 and adjacent to the Boise River”. 
 
Goal 10: Project “designs open spaces as part of large-scale developments and 
locates buildings near open, public spaces to promote activity”. 
 
Goal 22: Project “establishes interesting gathering places that encourage walkability 
and promotes good health and positive social interaction.” 
 

F. Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment:   Although the rezone and future Plaza 
project are in harmony with the Goals and Strategies of the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan, it does not fit squarely with the Future Land Use Map that shows the project 
parcels to be “Public.”  City Staff requests that the FLUM be amended to show the 
project parcels as Mixed Use, which is defined in the Comprehensive Plan as a 
combination of Commercial and Residential uses.  
 

   
 
In order to amend the Comprehensive Plan Maps, Council must determine that the 
proposed amendment is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan. (MCC 1-14-3) 
 
City Staff finds that an amendment to the FLUM changing the project parcels from 
“Public” to “Mixed Use” is in harmony with the stated goals in the Comprehensive Plan.  
As shown above, the Comprehensive Plan contemplates a River District with 
commercial plaza and gathering place south of Hwy 44 between Whiffen and Duff 
Lane.  Additionally, changing the FLUM from “Public” to “Mixed-Use” comports with 
Goals, 7, 8, 9, 10 & 22, as already stated above. 

 
G. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  Public Comments received 

via email are attached as Exhibit “A” 
 

H. Comments from Agencies: See Exhibit “B”  
 

I. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff: None N/A   
 



             
        

6 
 

J. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates: 
      

Newspaper Notification     7/2/2023 
 

 Radius notice to adjacent landowners   6/27/2023 
  
 Circulation to Agencies     6/27/2023  
 
 Sign Posting property     6/26/2023   

 
Neighborhood Meeting     5/25/2023 
 

K. Applicable Codes and Standards: 
  
Middleton City Code 1-14 and 5-2, and Idaho State Statute 67-6511. 
 

L. Planning & Zoning Recommendations:  The P&Z Commission considered City’s 
applications for Rezone and Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment at a public hearing 
held on June 12, 2023.  The Commission recommended approval of both applications 
with no additional conditions of approval noted.  (The FCR has not be approved and 
finalized because the July 10, 2023 P&Z Meeting was canceled.) 
 

M. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval: 
 
Per State law and the Middleton City Code, City Council’s decisions on a land use 
application must be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.   
 
As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts above in 
parentheses.   
 
As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the Council has the authority to 
hear these applications and to recommend approval or denial of the applications.  
Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requirements were met. 
Planning Staff further set forth the portions of the Idaho State Code and Middleton City 
Code to be considered in making a recommendation on the applications.       
 
Rezone and Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment Applications: If City Council is 
inclined to approve the applications, then Planning Staff and the P&Z Commission do 
not recommend any conditions of approval.  

If the Council denies the applications, then Council should state what the applicant can 
do, if anything, to obtain approval. (Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8)). 

Prepared by Roberta Stewart         Dated: 7/12/2023 
Planning & Zoning Official 



             
        

7 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Public Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



From: Connor Southerton
To: Roberta Stewart
Subject: Neighborhood meeting for May 25th
Date: Tuesday, May 16, 2023 3:02:57 PM

for the rezoning of the lots near Middleton Road and Middleton Lakes Subdivision.

I cannot make the meeting, but wanted it known as a resident of Middleton Lakes. I am for the
rezoning of that area to mixed use. I am also for the park and river walk behind the
subdivision. Thank you! Let me know if I can do anything else to help.

-- 
Connor Southerton, Middle School Minister
eaglechristianchurch.com | 503.360.4198

mailto:connor.southerton@eaglechristianchurch.com
mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com
https://www.eaglechristianchurch.com/


From: Brian Jordan
To: Roberta Stewart
Subject: Rezoning S. Hawthorne
Date: Monday, May 15, 2023 10:17:24 AM

I am writing today about the cities plan to rezone South Hawthorne south of Donna st. 
I am 100% against this idea. We don't need any more traffic on Hawthorne. Paradise already
has business on it, and the road already extends to the creek. 
We do not need businesses North of mill creek. South of the creek is fine, but this is a quiet
neighborhood that does not need the extra traffic and the potential crime related to more
traffic. 

Thank you for your time 

Brian Jordan 
313 Cindy Ave 

mailto:brianojordan101@gmail.com
mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com


From: Sioux Danes
To: Roberta Stewart
Subject: rezone parcel number R33900010A0 AND R339100000
Date: Thursday, May 25, 2023 3:45:58 PM
Attachments: park.pdf

ABSOLURELY NOT!!!!!!
THIS IS TO BE PARK, NEEDS TO REMAIN BEING PARK, WE DO NOT NEED MORE HOUSES AND
DEFINITELY NO MORE TRAFFIC!
 FIRST THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL PUT IN A ROCK QUARRY WHERE THE LOWER END OF THE
PARK WAS TO BE WITHOUT  NOTIFYING US AND NOW THIS!
YOU NEED MORE REVENUE, IT NEEDS TO BE BUSINESS IN A BUSINESS AREA. NOT STUFF MORE
OF THIS DOWN OUR  THROATS,
THEY ARE DESTROYING THIS PART OF OUR COMMUNITY AND THIS NEIGHBORHOOD. THIS IS
JUST ONE OF THE SEVERAL INFARCTIONS THEY HAVE IMPOSED ON OUR NEIGHBORHOOD.
I ALSO REALIZE THAT IT WAS BY DESIGN THAT YOU PICKED THIS DATE FOR THE MEETING,
SCHOOL IS OUT TODAY, PEOPLE ARE ATTENDING GRADUATIONS, LEAVING TOWN FOR THE
THREE DAY WEEKEND,
GUARANTEEING LOW ATTENDANCE TO THE MEETING… I AM TIRED OF THESE SIDEWAYS
POLITICS

ATTACHED YOU WILL FIND A MAP OF THE PARK…..

KEEP IT A PARK!!!!

mailto:siouxdanes@me.com
mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com











             
        

8 
 

EXHIBIT B 

Comments from Agencies 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

Sent: 7/7/23 
 

https://compassidaho.org/ 

 
info@compassidaho.org 

 
 

     

Communities in Motion (CIM) Development Review Checklist 
 

 

 

Development Name: Mill Creek 

CIM Vision Category: Activity Center 

Consistent with CIM 
Vision? NO 

New Households: ±160 New Jobs: ±300 
   

 
 

Safety  
 

Economic Vitality 
 How safe and comfortable is the nearest 

major road (minor arterial or above) for 
bicyclists and pedestrians? Analysis is 
limited to existing roadway conditions. 
 

 To what extent does the project 
enable people, government, and 
businesses to prosper? 
 

 Economic Activity Center 
Access  

 Impact on Existing 
Surrounding Farmland  

 Net Fiscal Impact N/A 
   
 

N/A 

  Pedestrian level of stress N/A 

 Bicycle level of stress N/A 
 

 

    
 

 

Convenience  
 

Quality of Life 
 What services are available within 0.5 

miles (green) or 1 mile (yellow) of the 
project? 
 

 Checked boxes indicate that 
additional information is attached. 
 

 Active Transportation  
 Automobile Transportation  

 Public Transportation  

 Roadway Projects  
 

  Nearest bus stop  
 Nearest public school  
 Nearest public park  
   
 

 

 
Improves performance 

 
Does not improve or 
reduce performance  

Reduces performance 

 

Comments: 
The estimated number of jobs exceeds growth forecasted for this area. However, the proposal is a mix 
of residential and retail, which can reduce congestion by decreasing the amount of single occupancy 
vehicle trips generated and encourage non-motorized travel. On Middleton Road, Valley Regional Transit 
(VRT)’s Transportation Development Plan 2023-2027 shows a future express bus route connecting 
Middleton, Star, Meridian, and Caldwell (FR-017-0). The project is currently in preliminary development. 
Consider working with VRT staff to site a future stop location on Middleton Road. 
 

Who we are: The Community Planning Association of Southwest Idaho (COMPASS) is the metropolitan 
planning organization for Ada and Canyon Counties. This review evaluates whether land developments 
are consistent with Communities in Motion, the regional long-range transportation plan for Ada and 
Canyon Counties. This checklist is not intended to be prescriptive, but rather a guidance document. Past 
checklists are available online. See the Development Review User Guide for more information on the 
red, yellow, and green checklist thresholds. 

https://compassidaho.org/
mailto:info@compassidaho.org
https://cim2050.compassidaho.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/CIM_2050_Vision_Map_Final.pdf
https://cim2050.compassidaho.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/CIM_2050_Vision_Map_Final.pdf
https://cim2050.compassidaho.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/07/CIM_2050_Vision_Map_Final.pdf
https://www.valleyregionaltransit.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/10/TDP_2023_Adopted.pdf
https://cim2050.compassidaho.org/
https://compassidaho.org/development-review/
https://compassidaho.org/wp-content/uploads/DevelopmentReviewChecklist_UserGuide_2023.pdf


 

Complete Network Appendix 
Checkmarks (✓) below indicate suggested changes to a site plan, based on the COMPASS 
Complete Network Policy (No. 2022-01). Both the Complete Network Policy and site-specific 
suggestions are intended to better align land use with identified transportation uses in the 
corridor. Please see the Complete Network map for primary and secondary uses for roadways 
(minor arterial and above) in Ada and Canyon Counties.  

Corridor Name: Middleton Road 

Primary Use: Public Transportation 

Secondary Use: Freight 
 

Long-Term Funded and Unfunded Capital Projects 
CIM Priority 
Corridor: 

Middleton Road (Cherry Lane to State Highway 44) &  
State Highway 44 (Interstate 84 (Exit 25) to Star Road) 

 

Widening Middleton Road (Cherry Lane to State Highway 44) to five lanes is the number 1 local 
system priority in Communities in Motion 2050 and is unfunded.  

A future study will determine transportation needs along State Highway 44.  

More information on transportation needs and projects based on forecasted future growth is 
available at:  https://cim2050.compassidaho.org/projects-and-priorities/project-priorities/  

 

Short-Term Funded Capital Projects 

Source: The COMPASS Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). The TIP is a short-range (seven-year) 
budget of transportation projects for which federal funds are anticipated, along with non-federally funded 
projects that are regionally significant and is available at: 
https://compassidaho.org/transportation-improvement-program/  

https://compassidaho.org/wp-content/uploads/completenetworkpolicy_final_dec2021_2022.pdf
https://compassidaho.org/wp-content/uploads/completenetworkpolicy_final_dec2021_2022.pdf
https://www.arcgis.com/home/webmap/viewer.html?webmap=15b81c9a92684b6b8c9fdfa7fd2d3639&extent=-116.7871,43.4583,-115.9179,43.8052
https://cim2050.compassidaho.org/projects-and-priorities/project-priorities/
https://compassidaho.org/transportation-improvement-program/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 



















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3 

















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4 



























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5 



ORD. NO. 679 - Page 1 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 679 

 
AN ORDINANCE ENACTED BY THE MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL AMENDING TITLE 1, 
CHAPTER 15, SECTION 1-15-12, OF THE MIDDLETON CITY CODE, PERTAINING TO THE 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR VENDORS, SOLICITORS AND TEMPORARY 
MERCHANTS PERMITS AND AMENDING TITLE 4, CHAPTER 1, SECTION 4-1-1 OF THE 
MIDDLETON CITY CODE REGARDING BUILDING PERMIT REQUIREMENTS; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, ORDERS AND PARTS THEREOF, IN CONFLICT 
HEREWITH. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Middleton, County of Canyon, 
State of Idaho: 
 

Section 1. That Title 1, Chapter 15, Section 1-15-12 of the Middleton City Code is 
hereby amended as follows: 
 
1-15-12: VENDORS, SOLICITORS AND TEMPORARY MERCHANTS PERMIT: 

 

In addition to all other regulations in this chapter, vendors, solicitors and temporary merchants 
shall be subject to the following: 

A. Application:  

1. All Applicants for a Vendors, Solicitors and Temporary Merchant Permit shall submit an 
application on a form prepared by the City and pay the application fee approved by City 
Council.   The Vendors, Solicitors and Temporary Merchants Permit is an annual permit that 
expires every December 31st regardless of the date issued. 

2. The provisions of this section shall not apply to: 
 

a. Traveling salespersons for local businesses:  
 
b. Newspaper Subscriptions: The sale of a newspaper subscription in which the seller is 

a person engaged in both the delivery and sale of the newspaper;  
 
c. School Students, Fundraising: The occasional sale of admission by local school 

students to a function of their school or fundraising sales by local service clubs and groups such 
as Elks, Kiwanis, Lions, Boy or Girl Scouts; 

 
d. Political Funds, Membership: Any political group seeking funds or membership; 

 
e. Garage, Yard Sales: Garage, yard or similar sales by individuals at their residence or 

place of business not exceeding two (2) separate sales in one calendar year, not to exceed 
three (3) days each, which sales shall not include business inventory or items that have been 
purchased for the purpose of resale at another garage sale; 

 
f. Special Events: Any activity conducted pursuant to a special events permit.  

 



ORD. NO. 679 - Page 2 

    3. No. person shall be issued a license when that person: 

a. Is under the age of 18 years old; 

b. Is required to register as a sex offender, pursuant to the sexual offender registration 
notification and community right-to-know act, Idaho Code section 18-8301 et seq., and the 
juvenile sex offender registration notification and community right-to-know act, Idaho Code 
section 18-8401 et seq.;  

c. Is currently on probation or parole for any felony. 

   d. Has had a similar license revoked by the City or any other City or County in the State 
of Idaho. 

BA.   Bond Requirement applicable to door-to-door solicitors only: 

      1.   Amount; Guarantee: Before any City business registration is issued for engaging in the 
business of "vendor", "solicitor", or "temporary merchant", as defined in chapter 3 of this title: 

         a.   Every individual shall deposit with the City a surety bond, a cashier's check or a letter 
of credit from a financial institution in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 

         b.   Every entity, which has employees or agents acting in the capacity of vendor, solicitor, 
canvasser or temporary merchant, shall deposit with the City a surety bond covering all such 
employees or agents and running to the City, or a cashier's check or irrevocable letter of credit 
in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) per employee or agent to a maximum of five 
thousand dollars ($5,000.00). The surety bond must be one issued by an agent upon which 
service of process may be made in the State of Idaho. 

      2.   Action Brought: Action on the surety bond, cashier's check or irrevocable letter of credit 
may be brought directly by any person damaged by a registrant's violation of any provision of 
this chapter. 

      3.   Bond Reimbursement: After expiration of a City business registration, the City shall, 
upon application of the registrant, return the bond or cashier's check within sixty (60) calendar 
days after receipt of application for return, unless the City has been notified of the pendency of 
any claim or cause of action by any person upon the bond, cashier's check or irrevocable letter 
of credit. 

CB.   Restrictions: 

      1.   Location: No registrant hereunder shall have an exclusive right to any location and shall 
not operate in any congested area, public road right-of-way, park or facility, or where his 
operations might impede or inconvenience the public, without written City authorization. For the 
purpose of this chapter, the judgment of a public safety officer, exercised in good faith, shall be 
deemed conclusive as to whether the area is congested or the public impeded or 
inconvenienced. 

      2.   Zoning: Any business activity conducted by a registrant may only be conducted in an 
area of the City properly zoned for such activity. 

      3.   Removal Of Trash: All trash or debris accumulating within twenty feet (20') of any 
vending stand shall be collected by the vendor and deposited in trash containers. All vendors 
selling food or beverages must provide trash receptacles adjacent to or as part of their stands. 



ORD. NO. 679 - Page 3 

      4.   Prohibited Areas: Vendor carts, stands, trailers and motor vehicles are prohibited within 
thirty feet (30') of a fire hydrant, fire escape, bus stop, loading zone, fire station, police station or 
hospital, and within public rights-of-way, unless otherwise permitted. 

DC.   Unlawful Conduct: No registrant hereunder shall: 

      1.   Misrepresent the purpose of, or affiliation of those engaged in, the solicitation. 

      2.   Continue efforts to solicit from an individual once that individual informs the solicitor that 
he does not wish to give anything to or buy anything from that solicitor. 

      3.   Represent the issuance of any registration under this chapter as an endorsement or 
recommendation of the solicitation. 

      4.   Enter upon any premises when the same is posted with a sign stating "No Peddlers 
Allowed" or "No Solicitation Allowed" or other words to such effect. 

      5.   Commit fraud, make misrepresentations or false statements in the course of carrying on 
the business. (Ord. 594, 8-16-2017; amd. Ord. 609, 7-3-2018) 

E. Revocation of License. 

1. City Administration and/or City Council have the power to revoke any license granted in 
accordance with this chapter for any of the following causes: 

 a.   Fraud, misrepresentation or false statement contained in the application or during 
the course of conducting business or trade; 

b.   Any other violation of this chapter; 

c,   Conviction of any crime involving a felony; 

d.   Conducting business in an unlawful manner or in such a manner as to constitute a 
breach of the peace or to constitute a menace to the health, safety or general welfare of the 
public.  

F. Appeals. 

 Appeals may be submitted in writing to the Clerk’s Office within five days of the denial of 
a license.  The Clerk’s Office shall have up to five days to determine the final disposition. 

G. Requirements for Mobile Food Truck Service and Vending Carts/Trailers:   

     1. In addition to the requirements of this chapter, food truck vendors, including vending 
carts and trailers, must provide the additional documents:  

 a.   Landowner permission to prepare and vend food from the landowner’s parcel. 

b.   Southwest District Health license to vend from a food truck, cart or trailer. 

c.   Proof of inspection and approval from the Middleton Fire Rural District to vend from a 
food truck, cart or trailer. 

d.   Sanitary sewer plan, including plan for gray water disposal. 



ORD. NO. 679 - Page 4 

e.   When vending on City owned property, proof of Workers’ compensation insurance, 
general liability insurance with a minimum coverage of $1,000,000.00 and automobile insurance 
with a minimum coverage of $1,000,000.00. 

     2. Food Truck, Cart and Trailer Vendors must also comply with the following requirements: 

a.   Only one food truck/cart/trailer per tax parcel, except City may allow up to three such 
vendors at any City Park. 

b.   Hours for vending are 6 a.m. to 10 p.m., except in City Parks where the hours are 
dawn to dusk. No over-night parking is allowed, and all vending accoutrements must be 
removed at the end of the day.  

c.   No connections to City utilities. 

d.   No tables, chairs, benches or other furniture can be placed on site for sit-down 
dining. 

e.   No food trucks/carts/trailers on vacant lots unless the lot is paved with asphalt or 
concrete.  

f.   No generator noise or other noise that would rise to the level of a nuisance as defined 
by MCC 8-1-5.  

g.   Food trucks, carts and trailers shall have a clean appearance at all times. 

h.   Food trucks, carts and trailers cannot occupy parking stalls on a lot to the degree 
that the existing business on site will have less than the number of parking stalls required by 
MCC 4-5-11. 

H.  Enforcement Authority.  

Any law enforcement officer or city licensing officer shall be authorized to enforce this 
chapter. 

 
Section 2.  That Title 4, Chapter 1, Section 4-1-1 of the Middleton City Code is hereby 

amended as follows: 
 

4-1-1: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:  
 
. . . 
 

N. Demolition Permit: A demolition permit is required from the City if a portion of a non-
agricultural structure is to be demolished. No permit is required if an entire structure is to be 
demolished. 

O. Street Frontage:  If a building permit changes the use of a parcel, building or structure, or 
if it increases the intensity of the use, building, or structure, then frontage improvements for the 
road(s) bordering the project parcel will be required unless an exemption is granted pursuant to 
subsection “1” below. All required frontage improvements shall be in compliance with City codes 
and standards and the City’s Supplement to the ISPWC in effect at the time of building permit 
issuance.  



ORD. NO. 679 - Page 5 

1. An exemption from the foregoing frontage requirements may be granted by the 
City if the Building Official determines that there is a lack of proportionality between the frontage 
improvements and the impact of development. The Building Official’s decision to require frontage 
improvements may be appealed by submitting a written appeal to the City Clerk within ten (10) 
days of being notified in writing of the frontage requirement. City Council shall hear the appeal 
within forty five (45) days of the submittal of appeal and shall render a decision within thirty (30) 
days of the hearing on the appeal.      
 

Section 3. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval, and publication, according to law. 
 

Section 4. This ordinance is hereby declared to be severable. If any portion of this 
ordinance is declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall 
continue in full force and effect and shall be read to carry out the purposes of the ordinance before 
the declaration of partial invalidity. 
 

Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions, orders and parts thereof in conflict herewith are 
repealed. 
 
 

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this ____ day of 
_________, 2023. 

 
 

 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this ____ day of 

_________, 2023. 
 

       ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Steven J. Rule, Mayor    City Clerk (or Deputy) 
  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7 



ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON 

NOTICE OF ADOPTION AND SUMMARY OF 

AMENDED AND RESTATED ORDINANCE NO. 679 

 

AN ORDINANCE ENACTED BY THE MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF MIDDLETON, 

COUNTY OF CANYON, STATE OF IDAHO, AMENDING THE MIDDLETON CITY CODE 

TITLE 1, CHAPTER 15, SECTION 1-15-12 REGARDING ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR 

VENDORS, SOLICITORS AND TEMPORARY MERCHANTS AND AMENDING THE 

MIDDLETON CITY CODE TITLE 4, CHAPTER 1, SECTION 4-1-1 REGARDING BUILDING 

PERMITS AND REQUIREMENT OF FRONTAGE IMPROVEMENTS; PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND REPEALING ALL 

ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, ORDERS AND PARTS THEREOF, IN CONFLICT 

HEREWITH. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, 

COUNTY OF CANYON, STATE OF IDAHO: 

 

Section 1. Amends Title 1, Chapter 15, Section 1-15-12 of the Middleton City Code by providing 

additional requirements for those seeking a Vendors, Solicitors and/or Temporary Merchants Permit. 

 

Section 2. Amends Title 4, Chapter 1, Section 4-1-1 of the Middleton City Code by requiring frontage 

improvements if a building permit changes or intensifies the use on a parcel. 

 

Sections 3 - 5.  Provides that this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 

approval, and publication, according to law; provides for severability; repeals conflicting ordinances, 

resolutions, and orders. 

 

Ordinance No. 679 provides an effective date, which shall be on the _______ day of ____________, 2023. 

Ordinance No. 679 was passed by the Council and approved by the Mayor on the 19th day of July, 2023. 

The full text of the Ordinance is available at Middleton City Hall, 1103 W Main St, Middleton, ID 83644. 

The Mayor and City Council approved the foregoing summary on the 19th day of July 2023, for publication 

on the ________  day of ________________________, 2023, pursuant to Idaho Code § 50-901A. 

 

         

         

______________________________________  ___________________________________ 

Steven J. Rule, Mayor     Becky Crofts, City Clerk 

 

STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVISOR 

I have reviewed the foregoing summary and 

believe that it provides a true and complete 

summary of Ordinance No. 679 and provides 

adequate notice to the public as to the contents of 

such ordinance. 

DATED this ____ day of __________________, 

2023. 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Douglas Waterman, Attorney for City of Middleton 

 



AD# 400514AD# 

LEGAL NOTICE

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL

LEGAL NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Middleton City Council will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, August 2, 2023, 5:30 
pm at City Hall, 1103 W Main Street., Middleton ID, to consider the following:

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL, MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AMENDING THE CURRENT 
FEE SCHEDULE TO, ADD NEW FEES FOR FOOD TRUCK VENDOR TEMPORARY MERCHANTS PERMIT, ADDITIONAL CON-
STRUCTION REINSPECTION FEES FOR FINAL PLAT/PROJECT CLOSE OUT AND BOND MANAGMENT INTAKE AND REVIEW 
FEES,  INCREASING BY MORE THAN 5% BUSINESS REGISTRATION FEES, BUILIDNG PERMIT FEES BASED ON 2021 BVD, 
SUBDIVSION APPLICATION FEES, AND ZONING APPLICATION FEES,  INCREASING BY NOT MORE THAN 5% BULK WATER 
RATE FEES, HYDRANT METER RENTAL FEES, BACTERIA TESTING FEES, SEWER CONNECTION FEES, WATER CONNEC-
TION FEES, WATER BASE RATE, WATER USE RATE, WASTEWATER BASE RATE, WASTEWATER (SEWER) USE RATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. THE FEE INCREASES OR NEW FEES ARE NECESSARY TO COVER INCREASED COSTS 
ASSOCIATED WITH THESE PROGRAMS/SERVICES

All are invited to attend the hearing and offer comments.  Written comments may be submitted to Middleton City Clerk, P.O. Box 
487, Middleton, ID 83644, and  bcrofts@middletoncity.com prior to or at the hearing.

Please call (208) 585-3133 at least five days prior to the hearing so the City can arrange to assist physical challenges or language 
translation.

ADMINISTRATIVE FEE Current Fees Proposed Fees
 Bulk Water Rate and Public Works         Fill Station Truck Inspection
 $26 & 3.34/1000 gal $25 Insp. $3.50/1000 gal
 Hydrant Meter rental $5.00/day & $3.34/1000 gal $5.00/day & $3.50/1000 gal
 Bacteria Testing Fee - metered at bulk water rate $3.34/1000 gal $3.50/1000 gal
 Business Registration $25/annually $30/annually

CONNECTION  FEE
 Sewer Connection*  
    5/8” x  3/4” per Equivalent Dwelling Unit (Res 411-18)  $6,682.39  $7,016.51
    1”   $8,328.29  $8,744.70
    1 1/2”  $18,483.41  $19,407.58
    2”   $32,345.15  $33,962.40
    3”   $73,932.55  $77,629.17
    4”   $130,758.71  $137,296.64
**Fee is based on water meter size since at least 98% of water discharges through the sewer system.”
     

 Water Connection** per Equivalent Dwelling Unit  
    5/8” x  3/4” (Res 411-18)  $4,060.34  $4,263.36
    1”   $10,394.37  $10,914.09
    1 1/2”  $23,387.33  $24,556.70
    2”   $41,575.28  $43,654.04
    3”   $93,543.82  $98,221.01
    4”   $166,303.31  $174,618.47
** Fee is based on “draft”, i.e., the pipe diameter area available for flow, and not based on the cost to install the device.

BUILDING FEE
     Building Permit Value of improvements based on Value of improvements based on 
   Building Valuation Data 2018 Building Valuation Data 2021
   Attachment A Attachment A
    On-Site Storage Container Permit  Permit required, no fee

PERMIT FEE
  Food Truck Vendors Temporary Merchants Permit  $125 annually
 
SUBDIVISION FEE
 Extension request (plat) $200 $210
 Preliminary plat permit application  1 - 49 lots $4,000 1 - 49 lots $4,200
   50 - 299 lots $4,500 50 - 299 lots $4,725
   300+ lots $7,500 300 + lots $7,875
 Construction drawing permit application/Public Works Inspection 1 - 49 lots $5,500 1 - 49 lots $6,575
   50 - 299 lots $6,500 50 - 299 lots $7,625
   300+ lots $11,500 300 + Lots $12,875
    Additional Construction Reinspection  
 Final plat / Project Close Out $1,000 $2,000
 Bond Management Intake and Review  $480

UTILITY BILLING FEE
 Water Base Rate $12.26 $12.87
 Water Use Rate $2.02/1,000 Gallons $2.12/1,000 Gallons
 Wastewater Base Rate 40.01/Month $42.01/Month
 Wastewater (Sewer) Use Rate $3.71/1000 gallons times the   $3.90/1,000 gallons times the 
   monthly average Nov-March monthly average Nov-Mar.
    
ZONING FEE
 Administrative lot split / boundary line adjustment $500  $550 
 Annexation and zoning $650 includes publication $750 
 Appeal $320 $340.00 

 Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
     (with or without rezone/annex&zoning) $650 includes publication $750 

 De-annexation $650 includes publication $750
 Design review  
    P&Z Review up to and including 2,000 sq. ft. $375  
    P&Z Review over 2,000 sq. ft. $750  $750 
    Staff Review $50  
 Development Agreement $1100 includes publication $3,000
 Special use permit $550 includes publication costs $750
 Variance $550 includes publication costs $750

July 23, 30, 2023  400514



RESOLUTION NO. 484-23 - PAGE 1 
 

RESOLUTION 484-23 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL, MIDDLETON, CANYON 
COUNTY, IDAHO, AMENDING THE CURRENT FEE SCHEDULE TO, ADD NEW 
FEES FOR FOOD TRUCK VENDOR TEMPORARY MERCHANTS PERMIT, 
ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION REINSPECTION FEES FOR FINAL 
PLAT/PROJECT CLOSE OUT AND BOND MANAGMENT INTAKE AND REVIEW 
FEES,  INCREASING BY MORE THAN 5% BUSINESS REGISTRATION FEES, 
BUILIDNG PERMIT FEES BASED ON 2021 BVD, SUBDIVSION APPLICATION FEES, 
AND ZONING APPLICATION FEES,  INCREASING BY NOT MORE THAN 5% 
BULK WATER RATE FEES, HYDRANT METER RENTAL FEES, BACTERIA 
TESTING FEES, SEWER CONNECTION FEES, WATER CONNECTION FEES, 
WATER BASE RATE, WATER USE RATE, WASTEWATER BASE RATE, 
WASTEWATER (SEWER) USE RATE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
THE FEE INCREASES OR NEW FEES ARE NECESSARY TO COVER INCREASED 
COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THESE PROGRAMS/SERVICES. 
 

WHEREAS, Idaho Code §50-1030 authorizes a municipality to collect fees pertaining to 
services offered/performed by the City; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Middleton believe that it is in the City’s 

best interest to update its current fee schedule for services provided by the City of Middleton; 
 
WHEREAS, on August 2, 2023 the City Council of the City of Middleton, Idaho, held a 

public meeting properly noticed under Idaho Code, to consider addition of new fees, increase 
certain existing fees by amounts that do exceed five percent (5%) of the fee and to increase certain 
existing fees by amounts that do not exceed five percent (5%) of the fee beginning October 1, 
2023.  The fee increases are necessary to cover increased costs associated with these 
programs/services; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, as follows: 

  Current Fees Proposed Fees 
ADMINISTRATIVE FEE   

 

Bulk Water Rate and Public 
Works Fill Station Truck 
Inspection $26 & 3.34/1000 gal 

$25 Insp. 
$3.50/1000 gal 

 Hydrant Meter rental 
$5.00/day & 

$3.34/1000 gal 
$5.00/day & 

$3.50/1000 gal 

 
Bacteria Testing Fee - metered 
at bulk water rate $3.34/1000 gal $3.50/1000 gal 

 Business Registration $25/annually $30/annually 
CONNECTION FEE   

 Sewer Connection*     



RESOLUTION NO. 484-23 - PAGE 2 
 

 

5/8" x  3/4" per Equivalent 
Dwelling Unit (Res 411-18) 

 $                                                           
6,682.39  $7,016.51 

 1" 
 $                                                         
8,328.29  $8,744.70 

 1 1/2" 
 $                                                     
18,483.41  $19,407.58 

 2" 
 $                                                       
32,345.15  $33,962.40 

 3" 
 $                                                       
73,932.55  $77,629.17 

 4" 
 $                                                     
130,758.71  $137,296.64 

 

* Fee is based on water meter 
size since at least 98% of water  
discharges through the sewer 
system.   

    

 

Water Connection** per 
Equivalent Dwelling Unit   

 5/8" x  3/4" (Res 411-18) 
 $                                                         
4,060.34  $4,263.36 

 1" 
 $                                                       
10,394.37  $10,914.09 

 1 1/2" 
 $                                                       
23,387.33  $24,556.70 

 2" 
 $                                                       
41,575.28  $43,654.04 

 3" 
 $                                                       
93,543.82  $98,221.01 

 4" 
 $                                                     
166,303.31  $174,618.47 

 

** Fee is based on "draft", i.e., 
the pipe diameter area available 
for flow, and not based on the 
cost to install the device.   

BUILDING FEE   

 

    Building Permit 
Value of 

improvements 
based on Building 

Valuation Data 2018 
Attachment A  

Value of 
improvements 

based on Building 
Valuation Data 

2021 
Attachment A  

 
   On-Site Storage Container 
Permit  

Permit required, 
no fee 



RESOLUTION NO. 484-23 - PAGE 3 
 

PERMIT 
  FEE   

 
Food Truck Vendors Temporary 
Merchants Permit  $125 annually 

SUBDIVISION FEE   

 Extension request (plat) $200 $210 

 
Preliminary plat permit 
application  1 - 49 lots $4,000 1 - 49 lots $4,200 

  50 - 299 lots $4,500 
50 - 299 lots 

$4,725 

  300+ lots $7,500 300 + lots $7,875 

 

Construction drawing permit 
application/Public Works 
Inspection 1 - 49 lots $5,500 1 - 49 lots $6,575 

  50 - 299 lots $6,500 
50 - 299 lots 

$7,625 
  300+ lots $11,500 300 + Lots $12,875 

 
   Additional Construction 
Reinspection   

 Final plat / Project Close Out $1,000 $2,000 

 
Bond Management Intake and 
Review  $480 

UTILITY BILLING FEE   
 Water Base Rate $12.26 $12.87 

 Water Use Rate $2.02/1,000 Gallons 
$2.12/1,000 

Gallons 
 Wastewater Base Rate 40.01/Month $42.01/Month 

 Wastewater (Sewer) Use Rate 

$3.71/1000 gallons 
times the  monthly 

average Nov-March 

$3.90/1,000 
gallons times the 
monthly average 

Nov-Mar. 
ZONING                                                                                                 FEE 

  

  
Administrative lot split / 
boundary line adjustment $500  $550  

  Annexation and zoning 
$650 includes 

publication $750  

 Appeal $320 $340.00 

 

Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment (with or without 
rezone/annex&zoning) 

$650 includes 
publication $750 

 De-annexation 
$650 includes 

publication $750 



RESOLUTION NO. 484-23 - PAGE 4 
 

 Design review   

 

P&Z Review up to and 
including 2,000 sq. ft. $375   

 

P&Z Review over 2,000 sq. 
ft. $750   

 Staff Review $50   

 Development Agreement 
$1100 includes 

publication $3,000 

 Special use permit 
$550 includes 

publication costs $750 

 Variance 
$550 includes 

publication costs $750  
 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, as follows: 
 
Section 1:  This Resolution is effective August 2, 2023. 

 
Section 2:  The City Clerk is directed to update the fee schedule to reflect revised fee amounts. 
 
 

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO THIS 2nd day 
of August 2023. 
 
 

CITY OF MIDDLETON  
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Rob Kiser, Council President 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Jennica Reynolds, Deputy Clerk  

     
 
 









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 



7/28/2023

1

City of Middleton
FY’24 Budget Review

FY’24
Budget 
Overview

$19,479,707

FY 2022 2023 2024
ACTUAL BUDGETED PROPOSED

FUND NAME EXPENDITURE EXPENDITURE EXPENDITURE 

GENERAL FUND:
Elected Officials $137,991 $149,770 $158,752
City Administration $1,134,972 $1,318,294 $1,431,582
Police $1,169,570 $1,697,918 $1,959,865
Building/Code 
Enforcement &  
Safety

$428,983 $493,724 $434,680

Buildings & Grounds $68,233 $111,383 $101,031
City Parks $251,454 $520,722 $1,193,117
Transfer's Out $257,500 $267,990 $281,390

General Fund Total $3,448,702 $4,559,801 $5,560,417

OTHER FUNDS
Transportation $1,769,595 $4,864,044 $5,707,223
Library $219,625 $303,578 $311,140

Other Funds Total $1,989,220 $5,167,622 $6,018,363

ENTERPRISE FUNDS:
Solid Waste $691,381 $728,197 $856,336
Water $1,239,362 $2,262,936 $1,808,058
Wastewater $3,005,817 $6,244,573 $3,807,384
Storm Water $62,181 $96,000 $76,000

Enterprise Fund Total $4,998,741 $9,331,706 $6,547,778

MISCELLANEOUS FUNDS
Impact Fees $80,671 $2,236,500 $1,353,150

Total Miscellaneous 
Funds $80,671 $2,236,500 $1,353,150

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 
ALL FUNDS $10,517,334 $21,295,629 $19,479,707

1

2



7/28/2023

2

General Fund 
Revenue

$5,559,495

$1,652,178.99 

$40,000.00 
$312,300.29 

$750,434.78 

$70,000.00 

$4,800.00 
$1,500.00 

$3,800.00 

$400,100.00 

$84,296.00 

$55,000.00 

$56,000.00 

$110,000.00 

$120,000.00 

$543,756.67 

$-

$10,500.00 

$8,750.00 

$2,300.00 

$198,900.00 

$20,000.00 
$10,000.00 
$160,500.00 

$15,000.00 
$25,000.00 

$50.00 
$1,000.00 

$904,250.00 

GENERAL FUND PROPERTY TAX

County Circuit Breaker

Property Tax Reserves

STATE & COUNTY REV SHARE-SALES TAX

GAS FRANCHISE

TV FRANCHISE

BUSINESS LICENSES

LIQUOR LICENSE FEES

BUILDING PERMITS/INSPECTIONS

ELECTRICAL PERMITS/INSPECTIONS

MECHANICAL PERMITS/INSPECTIONS

PLUMBING PERMITS/INSPECTIONS

STATE LIQUOR REVENUE SHARE

ANNEXING, PLANNING & ZONING

INTERFUND OVERHEAD

GRANTS (OHS)

TROLLEY STATION RENT

PROPERTY RENTAL

ADMIN. IMPACT FEE

POLICE IMPACT FEE

FINES & FORFEITURES

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS

REIMBURSEMENT SRO SERVICES

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

CREDIT CARD FEE REVENUE

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS

General Fund 
Salary and Benefits 

Expenses

Elected Officials Salary $123,280

Elected Officials Benefits/Liabilities $39,472

Administration Salary $419,508

Administration Benefits/Liabilities $152,290

Police $1,074,816

Police Benefits/Liabilities $384,327

Building $166,639

Bulding Benefits/Liabilities $57,301

Parks $76,116

Parks Benefits/Liabilities $37,730

$2,527,478

3

4



7/28/2023

3

General Fund 
Capital Expenses

Parks Capital 2024
2024 Inclusive Playground Equipment 100,000.00 

2024 Middleton Place Park Irrigation Pump 90,000.00 

2024 Pic Park surface irrigation water set-up 15,000.00 

2024 Grove Park Surface irrigation water set-up 15,000.00 

2024 Floating Take-out & gravel parking lot 65,000.00 

2024 Wetland Purchase 375,000.00
2024 River Park - North Roadway for river takeout 100,000.00

General Fund Capital 2024
2024 Gutters on Police building 15,000.00 

Police 2024
2024 New patrol officer Vehicle 36,000.00

2024 New Patrol Vehicles 150,000.00

2024 New officer uniform setup 12,000.00

2024 New patrol officer firearms 12,000.00

2024 Capital Improvement Plan update for Impact Fees 13,000.00

2024 Plate carries/ plates (vests) 8,000.00

2024 Computers for New officers 3,900.00

2024 Capital equipment/fleet/buildings 36,000.00

$1,045,900

Transportation 
Fund Revenue

$5,707,223

$892,416.23 

$90,889.15 

$346,354.52 

$64,000.00 

$330,790.95 

$98,505.50 
$292,244.70 

$2,165,000.00 

$80,000.00 

$150,000.00 

$10,021.92 

$2,000.00 

$310,000.00 

$875,000.00 
PROPERTY TAX COLLECTIONS

RESERVES

STATE REVENUE SHARE-SALES TAX

IDAHO POWER FRANCHISE

HIGHWAY USERS

HIGHWAY USERS - HB 312

HIGHWAY USERS - HB 362

GRANT

COUNTY ROAD & BRIDGE

GRAVEL PIT REVENUE

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS

CASH CARRY OVER

TRANSFER IN

5

6



7/28/2023

4

Transportation 
Salary and 
Benefits 

Expenses

Salary $262,699 

Benefits/Liability $109,342 

$372,041

Transportation 
Capital and Major 

Maintenance 
Expenses

Transportation Capital 2024

2024 Hartley Traffic Signal - Impact Fee $85,000.00

2024 Compass Grant for Sidewalks $165,000.00

2024 Capital Equipment / Buildings $130,000.00

2024 Center construction of round-about at Middleton Road $150,000.00

2024 Straightening Middleton Road Construction Boise to SH44 $250,000.00

2024 S. Cemetery Construction Signal $2,000,000.00

2024 CAPTTAL TOTAL $2,780,000.00

Major Maintenance 2024
2024 Road repairs E. of N. Middleton Rd.- West of the park Harmon  area $286,400.00

2024 Pavement for aging water/Sewer line replacement (Boise overlay) $73,356.32

2024 Dewey Culvert Replacement (lining) $320,000.00

2024 Road seal coating $100,000.00

2024 Chip seal S. Cemetery $120,000.00

2024 Swale repair $5,400.00

2024 Misc. Repairs - Unexpected items $37,300.00

2024 Misc. Sidewalk , curb, & gutter repairs $20,000.00

2024 LED street light replacement $21,600.00

2024 Providence Ave. Culvert Slip Line (under road) $75,000.00

2024 Highland Drive culvert $75,000.00

2024 General Maintenance $70,000.00

MAJOR MAINTENANCE TOTAL 2024 $1,204,056.32

Land Acquisition 2024

2024 ROW  - SH44/Middleton Road Savings $482,703.47

LAND ACQUISITION TOTAL $482,703.47

$4,466,760

7

8



7/28/2023

5

Library Revenue

$311,140

$1,700.00 
$1,200.00 

$281,389.50 

$-

$150.00 

$1,200.00 

$3,500.00 

$5,000.00 

$17,000.00 

COPY/PRINT

FINES

PROPERTY TAX COLLECTIONS

FUNDRAISING/LIBRARY PROGRAMS

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS

DONATIONS

NON RESIDENT FEES

GRANTS

CASH CARRY OVER

Library Salary 
and Benefits 

Expenses

Salary $153,751 

Benefits/Liability $ 45,620 

$199,371

9

10



7/28/2023

6

Library
Expenses

CONTRIB GEN FUND $                    14,286.50 
COMPUTER HARDWARE $                      3,000.00 
GASOLINE $                          500.00 
MARKETING $                      1,000.00 
LIBRARY PROGRAMS $                      3,500.00 
MEMBERSHIPS $                          165.00 
SUPPLIES $                      6,000.00 
TRAINING/CONF/CERTIFICATION $                          200.00 
UNIFORMS $                          200.00 
AUTO REPAIR/MAINT $                          600.00 
BUILDING MAINTENANCE $                      2,500.00 
BUILDING REPAIRS $                      3,000.00 
BUILDING SECURITY $                      1,500.00 
CATALOGING SERVICE/RESOURCE SH $                      4,000.00 
CLEANING SERVICE $                      1,000.00 
COMPUTER SOFTWARE $                      3,000.00 
COMPUTER SUPPORT $                      4,000.00 
DATA ACCESS $                      2,200.00 
LIABILITY INSURANCE $                      6,231.30 
OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE $                      3,200.00 
OFFICE EQUIPMENT $                      3,200.00 
POSTAGE $                      2,000.00 
WATER USAGE $                          900.00 
WASTEWATER $                          800.00 
TELEPHONE SERVICE $                      1,200.00 
SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL $                                   -
GRANTS $                      5,000.00 
PROF FEES ATTORNEY $                      1,000.00 
PROF FEES AUDITOR $                      1,450.00 
Asset Management Acquisition A (Tax) $                                   -
CAPITAL OUTLAY $                      8,000.00 
COLLECTIONS $                    21,135.25 
NATURAL GAS $                          400.00 
ELECTRICITY $                      6,000.00 
MISCELLANEOUS - LIBRARY $                          600.00 

$111,768

Garbage Fund 
Revenue

$856,336

11

12



7/28/2023

7

Garbage
Expenses

CONTRIB GEN FUND SAL OVERHEAD $                    13,747.33 

FRANCHISE PAYABLE             $                  777,009.36 

SUPPLIES $                            50.00 

BILLING SERVICE $                    15,075.00 

COMPUTER SUPPORT $                      7,030.00 

DATA ACCESS $                      1,600.00 

POSTAGE                       $                          900.00 

PROF FEES AUDITOR $                      1,740.00 

MISCELLANEOUS $                      1,000.00 

INDIRECT COSTS $                    38,376.31 
$856,336

Water Fund 
Revenue

$1,808,058

$1,000.00 
$29,019.40 

$500.00 

$1,196,294.00 

$426,335.70 

$2,000.00 

$1,250.00 

$10,908.84 $12,000.00 

$128,750.00 

AFTER HOUR FEE - OTHER

LATE FEES

LATECOMERS FEE

WATER COLLECTIONS

WATER HOOKUPS

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

INSPECTIONS-WATER SYSTEM

RENT

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS

CASH CARRY OVER

13

14



7/28/2023

8

Water Salary and 
Benefits 

Expenses

$520,675

Water Salary $399,947 

Water Benefits/Liability $120,728 

Water 
Capital and 

Major 
Maintenance

Expenses

$661,689

Water Capital 2023

2024 Zenner Meter System Upgrade $50,000.00

2024 New Construction Water Meters $43,000.00

2024 Large water meters/hydrants $16,500.00

2024 Aging water line replacement $170,000.00

2024 Emergency generator Well #8 $114,300.00

2024 Well #2 building repair, fence repair & new gate $51,500.00

2024 Well 4 tank painting to carry forward in savings for '25 $4,300.00

2024 Leak Equipment (per comp. plan) looking for leaks $42,000.00

2024 Flow Meter for Powder River and Cemetery PRV's $50,000.00

2024 CAPITAL TOTAL $541,600.00

2024 PRV maint. & repairs + Civil D (every 5 years) Powder River & Cemetery Rd. $7,500.00

2024 Chlorine $4,000.00

2024 Northwest Power Systems Annual Inspections $5,665.00

2024 Preventative maint. on wells $3,000.00

2024 Analytical Labs $3,200.00

2024 Hydrant repairs & parts $14,000.00

2024 General maint. $60,724.26

2024 Fence Well #8 #6 #4 $17,000.00

2024 Well 4 tank inspection $5,000.00

2024 MAJOR MAINTENANCE TOTAL $120,089.26

15

16



7/28/2023

9

Wastewater 
Fund Revenue

$3,807,384 $2,867,232.96 

$701,650.95 

$1,250.00 

$10,000.00 

$227,250.00 

SEWER COLLECTIONS

SEWER HOOKUPS

INSPECTIONS-SEWER SYSTEM

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS

CASH CARRY OVER

Wastewater 
Salary and 
Benefits 

Expenses

$655,151

Salary $470,165

Benefits/Liability $184,985

17

18



7/28/2023

10

Wastewater
Capital and 

Major 
Maintenance

Expenses

$1,109,130

WW Treatment 2024
Capital Mechanical Treatment

2024 Pilot Study $40,000.00

2024 Mill Slough $50,000.00

2024 Headworks Expansion $100,000.00

2024 Decommission historical lagoons $150,000.00

2024 Capital equipment/buildings $31,000.00

TOTAL WW Treatment Capital $371,000.00

Wastewater Treatment Maintenance
2024 Headworks $2,500.00

2024 Blowers $3,000.00

2024 UV $20,000.00

2024 Lab/Facility/General/Site $35,000.00

2024 Pilot Project $65,000.00

TOTAL Treatment Maintenance $125,500.00

WW Collections 2024
Capital Collections

2024 Sawtooth RAB - Fund Transfer to Streets $10,300.00

2024 Park Place Lift Station - Back-up generator $80,000.00

2024 Park Place Lift Station - fence $15,450.00

2024 Force Main Discharge Manholes $25,000.00

2024 Spare pump at Black Acres $15,000.00

2024 Lakes of Telaga frost free hydrant $5,000.00

2024 Boise River Fence $20,000.00

2024 Capital equipment/buildings ( see fleet below) $51,139.00

TOTAL Capital WW Collections $229,889.00

Collections Maintenance
2024 CCTV Area #5 $50,000.00

2024 Aging sewer line replacement $225,825.93

2024 CCTV Repairs $30,000.00

2024 Lift Station Priority 1 maintenance per master plan $55,000.00

2024 Northwest Power Generator annual Maint. $5,500.00

2024 General Maintenance $16,415.47

TOTAL Major Maintenance Collections $382,741.40

Storm Water 
Fund Revenue

$76,000

$76,000.00 

$-

STORM WATER COLLECTIONS

CASH CARRY FORWARD

19

20



7/28/2023

11

Storm Water
Capital Expenses

$76,000

BILLING SERVICE $5,535 

MAINTENANCE $1,465 

PROF FEES ENGINEER $68,000 

MISCELLANEOUS $1,000 

Impact Fees

$1,353,150

IMPACT FEE FUND

70-399-010 CITY TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEE $                  250,000 

70-399-050 CITY POLICE IMPACT FEE $                    30,400 

70-399-799 CITY PARKS IMPACT FEE $                  120,820 

70-390-991 TRANSFER IN/CARRY FORWARD $                   951,930 

Total Revenue: $              1,353,150 

Department: 590

70-590-991 TRANSFER OUT-PARKS $                  904,250.00 

TRANSFER OUT-TRANSPORTATION $                  250,000.00 

TRANSFER OUT-POLICE $                  198,900.00 

Total Transfer Outs: $              1,353,150 

21

22



7/28/2023

12

Buildings/Fleet
Capital

$220,139

PW Equipment/Fleet/Buildings - 2024

2024 UTV Closed Cab & Dump Bucket $25,000.00

2024 (1) F-250 Pick-up Truck $53,139.00

2024 Sweeper Truck Reserve $130,000.00

2024 Truck Mounted Safety Davit $12,000.00

TOTAL $220,139.00

Proposed Fee
Increases

Current Fees Proposed Fees
ADMINISTRATIVE FEE

Bulk Water Rate and Public Works Fill Station Truck Inspection $26 & 3.34/1000 gal $25 Insp. $3.50/1000 gal
Hydrant Meter rental $5.00/day & $3.34/1000 gal $5.00/day & $3.50/1000 gal
Bacteria Testing Fee - metered at bulk water rate $3.34/1000 gal $3.50/1000 gal
Business Registration $25/annually $30/annually

CONNECTION FEE
Sewer Connection*

5/8" x  3/4" per Equivalent Dwelling Unit (Res 411-18)
$                                                         
6,682.39 $7,016.51

1"
$                                                         
8,328.29 $8,744.70

1 1/2"
$                                                       
18,483.41 $19,407.58

2"
$                                                       
32,345.15 $33,962.40

3"
$                                                       
73,932.55 $77,629.17

4"
$                                                     
130,758.71 $137,296.64

* Fee is based on water meter size since at least 98% of water 
discharges through the sewer system.

Water Connection** per Equivalent Dwelling Unit

5/8" x  3/4" (Res 411-18)
$                                                         
4,060.34 $4,263.36

1"
$                                                       
10,394.37 $10,914.09

1 1/2"
$                                                       
23,387.33 $24,556.70

2"
$                                                       
41,575.28 $43,654.04

3"
$                                                       
93,543.82 $98,221.01

4"
$                                                     
166,303.31 $174,618.47

** Fee is based on "draft", i.e., the pipe diameter area available 
for flow, and not based on the cost to install the device.

23

24



7/28/2023

13

Proposed Fee
Increases Cont.

Current Fees Proposed Fees
BUILDING FEE

Building Permit Value of improvements based on 
Building Valuation Data 2018

Attachment A 

Value of improvements based on 
Building Valuation Data 2021

Attachment A 
On-Site Storage Container Permit Permit required, no fee

PERMIT FEE
Food Truck Vendors Temporary Merchants Permit $125 annually

SUBDIVISION FEE
Extension request (plat) $200 $210
Preliminary plat permit application 1 - 49 lots $4,000 1 - 49 lots $4,200

50 - 299 lots $4,500 50 - 299 lots $4,725
300+ lots $7,500 300 + lots $7,875

Construction drawing permit application/Public Works 
Inspection 1 - 49 lots $5,500 1 - 49 lots $6,575

50 - 299 lots $6,500 50 - 299 lots $7,625
300+ lots $11,500 300 + Lots $12,875

Additional Construction Reinspection
Final plat / Project Close Out $1,000 $2,000
Bond Management Intake and Review $480

UTILITY BILLING FEE
Water Base Rate $12.26 $12.87
Water Use Rate $2.02/1,000 Gallons $2.12/1,000 Gallons
Wastewater Base Rate 40.01/Month $42.01/Month

Wastewater (Sewer) Use Rate
$3.71/1000 gallons times the  
monthly average Nov-March

$3.90/1,000 gallons times the 
monthly average Nov-Mar.

ZONING FEE
Administrative lot split / boundary line adjustment $500 $550 
Annexation and zoning $650 includes publication $750 
Appeal $320 $340.00
Comprehensive Plan Amendment (with or without 
rezone/annex&zoning) $650 includes publication $750
De-annexation $650 includes publication $750
Design review

P&Z Review up to and including 2,000 sq. ft. $375 
P&Z Review over 2,000 sq. ft. $750 $750 
Staff Review $50 

Development Agreement $1100 includes publication $3,000
Special use permit $550 includes publication costs $750
Variance $550 includes publication costs $750 

25


	FCO - Mill Creek Plaza Rezone & Map Amendment.pdf
	In the Matter of the Request of the City of Middleton for rezone and Comprehensive Plan map amendment pertaining to parcels owned by the City of Middleton (Parcel No. R33900010A / 0 Middleton Road and Parcel No. R33910010):
	A. Findings of Fact:
	1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of July 19, 2023, which Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference.
	2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of July 19, 2023, Exhibit “A”.
	3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of July 19, 2023, Exhibit “A”.
	4. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7), Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15 and 5-2. See Staff Report for the hearing date of July 19, 2023,  Exhibit “A”.

	B. Conclusions of Law:
	1. That the City of Middleton exercised the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503).
	2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City Planning S...
	3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.
	4. That City Council’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has kept a record of the application and related documents.
	5. That codes and standards applicable to the applications are Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15 and 5-2.

	C. Decision and Recommendation:
	Pursuant to City Council’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-2, and based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby Ordered that:
	1. The application of the City of Middleton to rezone Parcel No. R33900010A0 from R-3 (Single Family Residential) to M-U (Mixed Use), rezone the seven acres of Parcel No. R339100100 from A-R (Agricultural Residential) to M-U is approved.
	2. The application of the City of Middleton to change the land use designation from “Public” to “Mixed Use” on the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map with respect to Parcel Nos. R33900010A0 and R339100100 is approved.
	Blank Page
	Mill Creek Plaza Rezone - CC Staff Report.pdf
	Mill Creek Plaza
	Rezone & Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment
	A. City Council Hearing Date: July 19, 2023
	B. Application Request & Project Description: City application for rezone of two parcels owned by the City of Middleton (Parcel No. R33900010A / 0 Middleton Road (approx. 20.75 acres) and Parcel No. R33910010 (approx. 7 acres)).  City Staff is request...
	The new City Plaza is intended to be a gathering place that will be in the heart of the City’s planned “River Walk District.”  The new plaza may have restaurants, retail, office, and possibly some residential components that will create a vibrant plac...
	C. Current Zoning, Land Use & Property Condition:  Currently the project parcels are vacant land zoned R-3 (Single Family Residential) and A-R (Agricultural Residential). City leases the property to a farmer to grow alfalfa.  The parcels are surrounde...
	A rezone to Mixed Use will allow commercial uses such as retail, restaurants, banks, spas, art studio, entertainment facilities, professional services, office…etc.  Mixed Use zoning also accommodates single family residential housing and townhomes.  A...
	D. City Services:  Water and sewer are immediately adjacent to the property on three sides and transect the property right below the drain and pedestrian bridge, so City Services are readily available to the site.
	E. Rezone:  Applicant is requesting that the 20.75 acre parcel that is currently zoned R-3 be rezoned to M-U and requesting that the seven acre property that is currently zoned A-R be rezoned to M-U.
	An application for rezone requires two findings before the Council can approve the rezone: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and (2) the rezone request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho Code ...
	FINDINGS:
	Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver services because it is an in-fill project that is surrounded by City roads, schools, infrastructure, and utilities, including sewer and water.
	Planning Staff also finds that the rezone request is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan.  Specifically, the rezone is in compliance with the following Goals & Strategies:
	Goal 7: The rezone and subsequent project will “invite commercial development that provides employment opportunities for residents.”
	Goal 8: The project will “promote a vibrant community” that attracts businesses and people. It will also improve the tourism economy in the City and will establish facilities that help utilize the river frontage and outdoor recreation areas.
	Goal 9, Strategy 2: The project “creates a river district between Whiffin Lane and Duff Lane south of Highway 44 and adjacent to the Boise River”.
	Goal 10: Project “designs open spaces as part of large-scale developments and locates buildings near open, public spaces to promote activity”.
	Goal 22: Project “establishes interesting gathering places that encourage walkability and promotes good health and positive social interaction.”
	F. Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment:   Although the rezone and future Plaza project are in harmony with the Goals and Strategies of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, it does not fit squarely with the Future Land Use Map that shows the project parcels to ...
	In order to amend the Comprehensive Plan Maps, Council must determine that the proposed amendment is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan. (MCC 1-14-3)
	City Staff finds that an amendment to the FLUM changing the project parcels from “Public” to “Mixed Use” is in harmony with the stated goals in the Comprehensive Plan.  As shown above, the Comprehensive Plan contemplates a River District with commerci...
	G. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  Public Comments received via email are attached as Exhibit “A”
	H. Comments from Agencies: See Exhibit “B”
	I. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff: None N/A
	J. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     7/2/2023
	Radius notice to adjacent landowners   6/27/2023
	Circulation to Agencies     6/27/2023
	Sign Posting property     6/26/2023
	Neighborhood Meeting     5/25/2023
	K. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Middleton City Code 1-14 and 5-2, and Idaho State Statute 67-6511.
	L. Planning & Zoning Recommendations:  The P&Z Commission considered City’s applications for Rezone and Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment at a public hearing held on June 12, 2023.  The Commission recommended approval of both applications with no addit...
	M. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	Per State law and the Middleton City Code, City Council’s decisions on a land use application must be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.
	As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts above in parentheses.
	As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the Council has the authority to hear these applications and to recommend approval or denial of the applications.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requirements were met. Pla...
	Rezone and Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment Applications: If City Council is inclined to approve the applications, then Planning Staff and the P&Z Commission do not recommend any conditions of approval.
	If the Council denies the applications, then Council should state what the applicant can do, if anything, to obtain approval. (Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8)).
	Prepared by Roberta Stewart         Dated: 7/12/2023 Planning & Zoning Official
	EXHIBIT “A”
	Public Comments
	EXHIBIT B
	Comments from Agencies






